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Thursday, May 19, 2016
--- On commencing at 9:34 a.m.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Ontario Energy Board sits today to hear a motion brought by the Carriers for an order compelling Hydro One Networks to provide supplementary answers to undertakings.

This motion is part of the proceeding numbered EB-2015-0141, which is a motion to review and vary, brought by a number of cable and telecommunication companies and associations collectively known as the Carriers.

The Carriers challenge the OEB's March 12th, 2015 decision approving distribution rates and charges for Hydro One for 2015 through '17 as it relates to pole access charge Hydro One charges for the use of its poles.

My name is Ken Quesnelle, and I will be presiding here today.  With me on the panel is Emad Elsayed.

We set out the process for today's hearing in our Decision and Procedural Order No. 9, issued on May 4th, 2016.  First we will hear submissions from all of the parties on whether the Carriers' motion should be granted; that is, whether Hydro One should provide supplementary responses to the Carriers, that the Carriers seek.  Next, if we determine that the supplementary responses the Carriers should be required, Hydro One will provide those supplementary responses by way of an affirmed oral testimony.

We directed Hydro One to have witnesses or a witness here on the standby today, in case we were to grant the Carriers' motion.

As we said in our decision in Procedural Order No. 9, our objective is, in establishing this process, is that by the end of the day today, whether we grant the Carriers' motion or not, we will have all of the evidence we need to make a decision on the pole access charge, and we can move on with the argument stage, which we will be doing in writing, so we will discuss that at the end of the day today as to schedule and what-have-you, as far as the written arguments.
We will take appearances now, please.


Appearances:


MS. VARJACIC:  Good morning.  Anita Varjacic, appearing as counsel for Hydro One Networks, and --


MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Do we have the microphone -- is on?  Okay.  Thank you.

MS. VARJACIC:  And with me to my immediate left I have Allan Cowan, the director of regulatory affairs, and the potential witness for later on this morning or this afternoon, Mr. John Boldt, who is the manager of program integration.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Ms. Varjacic.

MR. PINOS:  Good morning, members of the Panel.  My name is Timothy Pinos, P-i-n-o-s, on behalf of the Carriers.  With me to my left and your right is my colleague, Chris Selby, also from Cassels, Brock.  On my right, your left, is Mr. Michael Piaskoski from Rogers Communications.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Pinos.  Okay.

MR. RICHLER:  Good morning, Mr. Chair, Dr. Elsayed, Ian Richler, counsel to OEB Staff.  With me is Harold Thiessen, who is the case manager for OEB Staff.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Richler.

Okay.  We will first hear from you, Mr. Pinos.

MR. PINOS:  I think there is a preliminary matter that counsel for Hydro One wishes to address.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you very much.


Preliminary Matters:


MS. VARJACIC:  Good morning, Mr. Chair.  Upon review of the matter, Hydro One has reviewed all of the questions at issue on the motion, which the Carriers have divided into two categories.  The first pile was called the general interrogatories, the second being the reciprocal agreement interrogatories.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Hmm-hmm.

MS. VARJACIC:  Having reviewed the matter, Hydro One is prepared to provide answers or supplementary responses to question 2.1(a), 2.2(a)(ii), 2.5(a), and 2.11(b), those all being the Carriers' supplementary interrogatories.

And under the reciprocal agreement interrogatories, Hydro One is prepared to provide responses or supplementary responses to 2.1(c), 2.2(b), 2.3(g), and 2.4(b).

This was communicated to my friends yesterday, so hopefully it will shorten our submissions this morning.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  In what fashion would you be prepared to provide those responses?

MS. VARJACIC:  Whatever the Board feels is most appropriate and helpful.  Mr. Boldt is here and can answer the questions.  If you prefer, we can prepare written responses to have them filed.  Up to the Board.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Mr. Pinos, do you have anything to submit on that point?

MR. PINOS:  Well, normally I would say I would like to hear the answers first before -- but I am happy to have Mr. Boldt deliver the answers today, because there may be some follow-up questions that flow from those answers, in terms of understanding terminology, clarifying the scope of the answer, et cetera.

We can all deal with that today, whereas written answers, if there is any ambiguity or questions arising from the answers, that would create another round of letters to the Board and letters between the parties.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Ms. Varjacic?

MS. VARJACIC:  We're agreeable to Mr. Boldt answering the questions.  I think that the goal at the end of the day is to complete the evidentiary process today.

MR. QUESNELLE:  We had anticipated that, depending on where we went on the hearing of the initial motion, that if there was to be further responses, that the Panel would just seek the responses.

It sounds to me like, Mr. Pinos, are we getting into an area that looks like -- more like cross-examination than provision of further responses?  How do you anticipate participating in the rest of the day, subsequent to how we hear the motion?

MR. PINOS:  I don't know until I hear the answers, because I think, you know, part of the issue we had with some of the answers is that they either are partially responsive or non-responsive.  And depending on what the answers are, there may be further questions arising, or not.
I will present those, and my friend can object to them, and -- if she feels so appropriate, or there may not be many.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Why don't we cross that bridge when we get to it.  If we get do it.

MS. VARJACIC:  Fair enough.

MR. QUESNELLE:  All right.  Thank you.  Mr. Pinos.

MR. PINOS:  Thank you, members of the Panel.


Submissions by Mr. Pinos:

MR. PINOS:  This is a motion by the Carriers to seek further or better answers to certain of the interrogatories posed by the Carriers and others as a consequence of the last two procedural rulings of the Board.

As you quite accurately stated at the outset, this is in the context of a motion to review and vary the pole access charge component of the general distribution rate package that was approved last year and which the Carriers unfortunately had not been afforded the opportunity to participate in.

If I could just lay the context, because it will go to my submissions as to why the questions are relevant or within scope.  I would like to go back a little bit and sort of look at how the -- review how this matter has proceeded.

After the Board permitted the review and vary motion to proceed, the initial interrogatory process took place with respect as between the Carriers and Hydro and with the participation of the other intervenors.

The issue presented by the Carriers on the review and vary motion was primarily and essentially solely the fact that Hydro One inappropriately included vegetation management costs or tree-trimming costs in the calculation of the rate which it put forth as part -- put forth as part of its general rate application.  And certainly the bulk of the interrogatories that were presented by the parties were focused on that issue.

Some of the intervenors asked questions about other matters relating to the rate, and that led to the technical conference, where I think it would be fair to say for the first time issue was joined on the question of -- on two questions.

The first question was the extent to which the arrangements between Hydro One and Bell impact on costs or revenues or number of attachers with respect to the poles at issue, and secondly, the number of attachers question, because the original rate application filed by Hydro One in respect of the pole attachment rate assumed two-and-a-half attachers, as per the methodology used by the Board in its 2007 decision, in turn based on the relevant CRTC decision.

And those two issues were joined as a consequence of questioning by the Vulnerable Energy Consumers Coalition after we had had a chance to ask our questions in the technical conference.

As a consequence of that, the Carriers took the position -- and moved before the Board -- for a ruling that those two issues were out of scope, given the context of the original Hydro One application and the grounds advanced in our review and vary motion.

The Board determined -- dismissed that and left the argument for another day before the panel, as a consequence of which we brought the motion seeking leave to file interrogatories, submit interrogatories to Hydro One with respect to those particular issues, and sought the production of the Bell-Hydro joint-use agreement, which we hadn't viewed as being terribly relevant to the question of tree trimming costs.  But when you're talking about numbers of attachers and revenue arrangements relevant to the costs and revenues associated with the poles, we viewed that as being relevant.

The Board denied our request for production of the Bell-Hydro One joint-use agreement, but directed Board Staff to file certain interrogatories relating to certain information that may impact the calculation of the pole rate, and also permitted the parties to submit further -- submit some further interrogatories to Hydro One with respect to those issues.

So the interrogatories -- the latest round of interrogatories were really the first round of interrogatories we've had with respect to what I refer to as the additional issues, that is the number of attachers and the impact of the arrangements between Bell and Hydro One on costs and/or revenues or number of attachers to be calculated with respect to these poles.

So that's the context.  Although they look like supplementary interrogatories to interrogatories that were filed last year, they really deal with a new area that arose for the first time in the technical conference.  And in looking at the scope of relevance for that, in the Carriers' submission, should be looked at in that particular context rather than a narrowing of supplementary interrogatories as time goes on.

So we filed a group of interrogatories, some of which Hydro responded to, and others of which Hydro refused to respond to as being out of scope either because the Board refused to order production of the Bell-Hydro joint-use agreement, or because generally they were irrelevant.

I have a general submission with respect to the Hydro-Bell joint-use agreement.  In refusing production, I note that the Board didn't rule that anything in the agreement was irrelevant.  Rather, the Board, on the grounds of confidentiality, ruled that it need not be produced in full, but directed Board Staff to ask certain questions that related to matters that would be or would likely be canvassed in that agreement.  And Hydro did answer those questions with respect to certain aspects of the relationship between Bell and Hydro One as it related to the poles in issue.

So it is not a question -- I am going to make a general submission that it is not appropriate to say   because you didn't order the agreement produced, we don't have to answer questions about things that may be covered in an agreement, or may be dealt with in the agreement.

And we still haven't asked for production of the agreement; rather, we have asked specific arrangements -- specific questions about specific arrangements between Bell and Hydro One, which may be relevant to the Board's determination of costs and revenues as they relate to the pole rate and with respect to number of attachers.

So with that context, I would like to walk the Board through the remaining questions that Hydro One does not want to answer and make my submissions as to generally why and specifically why those are relevant to the matters in issue before the Board.

I am going to deal with the general interrogatories first because, by my calculation there, is only one of those interrogatories that Hydro One is now not willing to answer, and that's Interrogatory No. 2.2(a)(i), and that question asks -- is based -- asks follow up questions with respect to figures provided by Hydro One to the effect that in 2012, there were about a million and a half poles and a little over half a million identified as containing joint-use, leaving just under a million that did not contain joint-use or were non-joint-use.

So the question that we asked that Hydro One doesn't want to answer is whether any of these poles are designed and installed as joint-use poles, or are they single use poles designed only for use by Ontario Hydro.


In our respectful submission, that goes to the number of joint-use poles, which in turn goes to the number of attachers, which in turn goes to the rate.

And they're in the same basket, because Hydro's willing to answer:  Give us the sizes and numbers of poles used by Hydro One and split them up between joint-use poles and non-joint-use poles.  So it strikes us as slicing the hair a bit too fine to say, you know, we will answer questions about our poles, but we won't answer that specific question that is in that general basket.

So in my respectful opinion, having agreed to answer the other general interrogatories, a question, you know, focussed on the status of a pole as a joint-use pole or non-joint-use pole, you know, is potentially relevant.  I submit that the issue is not, you know, beyond a reasonable doubt relevance, or even on a balance of probability relevance.  It is whether it may be relevant to arguments we wish to make with respect to what poles should be counted or not counted in calculating the pole rate.

So those are my submissions with respect to the one remaining general interrogatory that Hydro One has not agreed to answer.

The remaining interrogatories, some of which Hydro has agreed to answer, relate to what we call the reciprocal agreement interrogatories.  Those are specific questions dealing with the joint-use agreement as between Hydro One and Bell.

And again, my starting point is that the Board has already ruled in Procedural Order 8, that a relevant matter -- which may be canvassed in that agreement which need not be produced -- is whether any of the costs that are being claimed for the poles in this rate are being recovered elsewhere, such as through reciprocal arrangements with Bell or other parties, and how the attachments associated with those reciprocal arrangements factor into the determination of the number of attachers per pole.

So there is two distinct legs to that, and my respectful submission is that each and every one of the questions which we seek answers to are relevant to --


I apologize.

[Cell phone sounds]

MR. PINOS:  Sorry, I thought I had turned it off.

-- are relevant to one of those two issues.  And I would like to again try to group them together.  But again walk you through the questions that we've asked that we say are potentially relevant to those issues.

So a threshold submission is that, you know, the number of poles in the pool, the number of poles that have attachers, and the extent to which the Bell poles, or the Bell joint-use poles are included or excluded from those pools, is relevant in our submission to the number of attachers.

There are two questions here that sort of -- two existing pieces of evidence that give rise to our concerns.  And one of them was that at the technical conference, Hydro One gave evidence that attachments by Bell have been excluded from the aggregate number of attachments calculated by Hydro One.

So a lot of our questions go to that issue, because if they had been excluded we need to know why, because 1.3 attachers, when you have large group of joint-use poles by Bell and a host of other carriers who attach to these poles, to us instinctively seems to be light for a utility like Hydro.

And the evidence given at the technical conference at page 34 that those poles had been excluded from the aggregate number of attachments, in our submission, deserves further query as to the basis for that and the extent to which there are other arrangements, compensating factors that would assist us in making submissions to the Board about whether they should be included or excluded in the calculation of the number of attachers.

The second question is what are the financial arrangements relating to Bell's attachment to poles?  Because we're talking about -- we're not talking about a discrete body of poles that Hydro One and Bell share.  We're talking about poles that, you know, Hydro is on,  Bell may be on, and other carriers may be on.

So that the question of cost sharing with respect to those is relevant.  And we have, you know, an apparent conflict in the evidence sitting here right now today to the extent that in an early response to one of our interrogatories that, you know, Bell is a wire line attacher that pays the pole access charge, but is then -- in another interrogatory it is indicated that it doesn't pay the pole access charge, you know.

So we need clarification with respect to that and to understand the arrangements.  And even if it doesn't pay the pole attachment charge per se, the existing 22 and change, the question is:  Are there other financial arrangements that are tantamount to the charging of a pole access charge or otherwise involve sharing of costs with respect to those poles that they have a joint-use agreement in respect of?


So those are the foundation for the remaining questions, and I just want to walk you through the questions that Hydro One has not agreed to answer and just slot them into either or both of those general fields of relevance.

So with respect to 2.1, Hydro One's agreed to answer (a).  The (c), (d), and (e) are questions directed at the extent to which Bell has access -- the rights of access to all poles that contain joint-use.  The number floated by Hydro with respect to Bell Canada attachers is 331,000, and it indicates that there are 576,000 that contain joint-use.  2.1(c), (d), and (e) relate to Bell's rights to that and to confirm the number of poles that are included in a joint-use pole and also ownership.

One of the figures that came out in the last round of interrogatories from Hydro One was the notion that there is a 60-40 split between Bell and Hydro One with respect to poles.

We have a bunch of our questions relate to what that means.  Does that mean there is a difference that the poles' ownership is allocated?  Does that mean there is cost sharing on a 60-40 basis?  How does that work?  Because we know from other jurisdictions that in some jurisdictions, you know, the utilities don't go and count every individual pole and say, well, that is yours, Hydro.  That is yours, Bell.  They say, well, here are all of the poles that either one of us put up, and we agree that they're owned 60-40.  Or in some provinces each one is owned 60-40, right?  So there is a joint ownership of all of the poles in a 60-40 ratio.


That, you know, 60-40 figure was floated, you know, more recently, and certainly the extent to which there is cost-sharing with respect to the capital costs of poles and the maintenance costs of poles is relevant to the extent to which the Hydro One figures for costs, maintenance, and other matters that they bear with respect to these poles, in our submission, is highly relevant.

So that is 2.1(c), (d), and (e).  

2.2(b), Hydro One has agreed to answer (b), which, you know, the extent to which Bell has the right to access all of the 1.5 million poles, as opposed -- and if not, how many poles does it have the right to access?  If they've -- you know, I think that is highly relevant to the arrangements between Bell and Hydro One with respect to the poles, which, in turn, could be relevant to either the calculation of the number of attachers or any revenue-sharing arrangements.

2.3, it is interesting that Hydro One has agreed to answer (g), which is -- relates to a question asked by Mr. Harper of the Vulnerable Energy Consumers Coalition about the fact that Bell did not pay a pole attachment fee, and he asked the question, you know:  How's the difference accounted for?  I.e., the fact that Bell didn't pay the pole attachment fee?  And he said, is it like -- is it something Hydro One eats?  Is it something that grosses up the rates to the other carriers?

And our follow-up undertaking to that interrogatory to that was the fact that the Hydro One undertaking following the technical conference didn't squarely answer that question.

Hydro's now agreed to answer that question and, in our respectful submission, our questions (a) through (f) are squarely within that wheelhouse.  2.3(a) asks about the 60-40 split and what it means and how the reconciliation works; (b), (c), (d), and (e) talk about fees and cost-sharing and raises in (f) the issue about, is this a 60-40 split in the total number of poles allocated or is each pole owned 60-40?


Again, we're not asking for the agreement, but asking for information about these financial arrangements that may impact on whether the costs allocated to the pole attachment fee is appropriate for the determination of the rate for these carriers or whether there is other reckoning, because the original calculation of the pole attachment rate in the general distribution application simply contained a table of costs.  It doesn't contain a table of costs shared or potential revenues gained with respect to that that aren't recognized in the pole attachment rate.

Given that Hydro One, at least in some of the evidence, has expressed not to pay the pole attachment rate, I think that is fair game for the Carriers to understand whether they're paying their fair share or whether the costs that they're expected to bear reflect any arrangements between Hydro One and Bell that have the effect of absorbing, defraying, or otherwise deferring costs that otherwise might be included in the pole attachment rate.

So that deals with 2.3(a) to (f).  In (h) and (i) are follow-ons from that to understand the intersection between the Bell poles that have wireline attachers and the Bell poles that don't and the Bell poles that have ours and other third-party attachers on them.

So (h) is an important one in understanding the numbers provided by Hydro One relating to the number of poles that have attachers on them, which go directly to the attachers-per-pole issue that was raised for the first time at the technical conference.

So those are -- that deals with 2.3.  2.4 deals with the same issues in respect of three other utilities, and those are other reciprocal poles, and Bell, in its responses to the extra interrogatories, identifies three additional utilities that have reciprocal agreements with Hydro One.

And in 2.4(a) we raise squarely the issue of the apparent conflict that Bell does not pay the pole attachment fee, with other evidence that they -- where they indicated that it did, and we submit that that is highly relevant.

2.4(b) Hydro One has agreed to answer, and that relates to essentially the -- a summary of the financial arrangements between those other three utilities and Hydro One, which is parallel to the Bell joint-use agreement.

So we then move on to 2.8, which are other questions relating to the arrangements between Bell and Hydro One.  We talk about whether it pays the pole attachment fee or not.  2.8(a) talks about what other compensation or other consideration does Bell provide Hydro One for its wireline attachments.  In my respectful submission, that is entirely relevant, because if there is consideration provided it needs to be factored into the pole rate, because it is an alternative form of compensation that we need to be able to understand and factor in and determine whether it is of a level that is comparable to either the existing pole attachment rate or the proposed pole attachment rate, which leads to the second question, 2.8(b):  Will the proposed pole attachment fee apply to Bell and its wireline attachers?  If not, what fee will apply?  One that is greater?  One that is less?

Those are all relevant to the -- not just the calculation of the rate, but also an assessment of whether it is just and reasonable in the circumstances, if the Carriers are being asked to pay a fee that is substantially different from the fee or other compensation that Bell may be required to.

And then (c) goes and, you know, asks effectively for how that relates to the 60-40 split in terms of -- now, that question may be irrelevant in light of the earlier questions once we stand how the 60-40 split works.  But if there is somehow this overall sharing of poles and costs associated with poles, we need to know how it works in order to understand how it should have been factored into the original pole rate calculation.

And likewise, (d) and (e) are additional questions relating to possible revenue or cost sharing as between Bell and Hydro One relating to those poles. 

So that 2.8 are really linked to the earlier interrogatories that go to the financial arrangements -- not the legal arrangements, but the financial arrangements between Bell and Hydro One that may impact the Board's consideration of the pole attachment rates. 

So I think I have covered them all.  The next one they have agreed to.  But at the end of the day I think it is, you know, in my respectful submission is: is it potentially or possibly relevant. 

This isn't a fishing expedition.  I have linked our questions to the two issues which the Board has already identified as being relevant to this proceeding, whether any of the costs that are claimed in this proceeding are being recovered or compensated for elsewhere, and secondly, what are the number of attachers that should be included in terms of the numerator with respect to determining the number of attachers.

And of course, you know, I make these submissions in the context of the Board rulings and without prejudice to my ability to argue, when it comes time to argue the hearing, that these issues shouldn't be on the table at all.

But in order to serve my clients and establish what I think is the full factual foundation for this Board to understand how poles and pole attachments work, you know, I think it is appropriate that these questions be answered. 

Those are my submissions.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, Mr. Pinos.  Ms. Varjacic? 

Submissions by Ms. Varjacic:

MS. VARJACIC:  Thank you, Mr. Chair. 

I will try and be brief.  I agree with Mr. Pinos in terms of the history that brought us here, the issues and the scope of these questions:  The focus of this proceeding is quite narrow.  It is a review of the pole access charge.  The Board has already ruled and made it quite clear that we’re not talking about the methodology in this case.  That has been dealt with separately in a generic proceeding.

We're just talking about Hydro One's evidence and the submission of the calculation in accordance with the established methodology.

Hydro One's view is that the examination before the Board, when determining a just and reasonable rate, is whether the inputs are appropriate.  The inputs are the dollars, the direct costs and the indirect costs that have been included in the formula, and questions have been asked and answered on those issues. 

There is the allocation factor, the number of attachers per pole; questions have been asked and answered on that.

And the cost issue, as I understand it, is calculated on the aggregate number of poles, so people want some comfort, understandably so, that Hydro Ones calculation or quantification, or the method by which it determines its total pole count is relevant to how the pole attachment rate is calculated.

With that framework, the company went back reviewed the questions that were asked and thought, okay, do the questions seek information that talks about the total aggregate pole count?  If yes, I believe we have agreed to answer them.

Is the question asked something that goes to the calculation of the actual attachment rate, which Hydro One's evidence suggests is 1.3 attachers per pole as opposed to the previously assumed 2.5.  If the answer to that was yes, we have agreed to provide the responses.

Then there is the overarching issue of, when we're looking at this small issue in a vacuum of the appropriate pole attachment rate, is the Board, we believe, and the intervenors and carriers want comfort that the figures being used in this pole attachment rate to calculate it aren't being recovered elsewhere in rates.

And to the extent that the question touched upon that issue, the company has agreed to answer it.

The balance of the questions -- and I don't purport to go through them one by one, unless the Board believes it would be helpful -- in our view are irrelevant.  They go beyond the scope of those key foundational issues.

As an example, the agreement with Bell.  Hydro One has already provided evidence that there are no costs that are being sought in the pole attachment rate that are part of the Bell agreement.  So follow up questions on that point strike us as irrelevant and redundant, which is why the company believes it ought not be required to answer them.

I mean, we're talking about a commercial contract, a contract that was negotiated between Bell and Hydro One.  It has nothing whatsoever to do with the pole attachment rate. 

As I understand it, the rate is based on that Board methodology, and the rate that is paid is the same regardless of whether there's one attacher on an actual pole or two or three or four, depending on the technical requirements.  It doesn't change the actual rate. 

The fact that Hydro One has gone and entered into separate agreements, negotiated outside of that rate, in our submission, is irrelevant to the actual quantification of the rate in accordance with the methodology.

And that is the reason the Board – sorry, the company has thought these other additional questions aren't relevant, and are simply trying to do what the Board suggested isn't permissible. 

The Board has already decided the agreement is irrelevant. The relevant issues is there a double cost recovery, or double counting or double dipping.  The company has said, no, there isn't.

The Board also asked, or directed Board Staff to ask and Hydro One answered, how is the Bell agreement factored into the quantification of the number of attachers in that calculation, and the company answered that question.

Mr. Pinos suggested that there was some confusion about that, but the Bell attachments are included in the calculation of the 1.3 attachment rate.  I think that is quite clear, and was answered in an undertaking as well as in the response to the Board's staff's recent interrogatory on that point.

They are included as part of its joint-use pool in calculating the number of attachers.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Ms. Varjacic, I just -- there is one thing that you mentioned that the company is prepared to and has responded to issues where it saw that it went to the other revenues, and that whether or not there was offsets or other funding for some of these costs.

MS. VARJACIC:  Yes.

MR. QUESNELLE:  So on that basis, some of the questions strike me that go directly to that.  I think -- I think it is Mr. Pinos' submission that that is what they're interested in.

And we may have to go one by one, but to the extent that there would be an interrogatory that would go to the heart of the calculation of whether or not there are other revenues and how they're treated.  It is not just an affirmation that no, they're not counted.

They're asking specific questions.  I'm trying to understand how is it that you feel that the company has responded to the questions that relate to the other revenues offsetting some of these costs. 

MS. VARJACIC:  If I misspoke, I apologize.

I don't believe that I did.  That is part of the questions that Hydro One has agreed to answer.  For example, the VECC interrogatory which Mr. Pinos suggested was not adequately answered, or the enquiry about, where are these costs?  Is Hydro One eating them -- I believe that is how it was phrased -- or where are they, and that is something the company is prepared to answer.

MR. QUESNELLE:  That is my point.  You didn't misspeak.  But if the company is prepared to answer them, there are some of these questions that are being – a further response being sought that go directly to that.

If you're saying you are prepared to answer, I am not seeing how some of these questions differ from that.

It might come at it a different way, but it gets to the heart of the same matter, I think.

MS. VARJACIC:  Having listened to my friend's submissions, I sat here and dawned on me that perhaps our procedure today might be a bit off, because I have the benefit to the responses, as you might appreciate.

I believe that once the questions that the company has agreed to answer, in addition to that I think I failed to advise the Board that the company also thought it would be useful to provide the parties with a general overview description of the nature of the Bell agreement. 

MR. QUESNELLE:  The same thing has dawned on me listening to the submissions, is that I feel I am at an introduction to a technical conference that we haven't had yet. 

These are -- anyway, I'm sorry I didn't mean to interrupt, but I think we're at cross purposes. 

It may be procedurally-wise here we're hearing arguments as to what is left to be asked, and maybe we should be hearing what should come onto the record at some point.  And I am asking for your comments on that.

Your client has agreed to put certain things on the record.  Perhaps once we have that we could have a recess and --


MS. VARJACIC:  I think once you hear that evidence and my friend hears that evidence, I may be able to persuade you that the balance of the questions are irrelevant.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Well, that may be the case.  And I guess we're operating in a bit of a vacuum here.

MS. VARJACIC:  For example, my friend asked a number of questions about 60-40, for example.  Many of the questions as posed, when we look at them carefully, have embedded into them improper assumptions that just have no application, so it is difficult to answer.

So we feel like the questions that we have agreed to answer that speak to the very issues we're speaking of, I feel like when you have the responses and my friend has the responses it may put to bed some of the other issues that we're speaking of.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Can we just have a moment here?

MS. VARJACIC:  Yes.

[Board Panel confers]

MR. QUESNELLE:  Mr. Elsayed and I are just considering -- and I put this forward to the parties -- would there be any merit in taking about a half hour recess and have an exchange of information between the parties this morning, including Board Staff, and then determining how we want to continue this morning?

We need the information on the record.  That's been -- you know, whatever is agreed to being put on the record, we will figure out a way to get it on the record.  But it strikes me we're hearing arguments in a bit of a vacuum here this morning, between the parties as well.

So I think that perhaps we take a half an hour, Mr. Pinos?

MR. PINOS:  I am happy to do that and then have a few minutes to get instructions and consider my position about how we should go forward.  I agree we're in a vacuum, because we're asking questions in the dark because we haven't had access to the agreement or even a summary of the agreement.  So --


MR. QUESNELLE:  And to the extent that -- and your argument is coming forward as to looking at other revenue areas, and I hear that the company is prepared to respond to certain areas of that and has already in response to VECC IRs.

If there is more coming on that or some of the responses that you have already agreed to shed light on that and may answer it in a different way or at least give clarity so that the questions coming forward actually are based on a better understanding of how the formula works and what-have-you, I think we would all be better served by that.

So Mr. Richler, anything to add to that?  Or do you concur that that might be of benefit?

MR. RICHLER:  Yes, that approach is fine with us.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes, okay, thank you.

Why don't we -- well, why don't we target getting back together at eleven o'clock.  Mr. Elsayed and I are prepared to come back earlier if, Mr. Richler, you just let us know that if there's -- we have the ability to move forward with a little better understanding of what we need to deal with today.  Okay?  Thank you very much.
--- Recess taken at 10:14 a.m.
--- On resuming at 12:01 p.m.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you, please be seated.


MR. PINOS:  We have had an extensive and productive session.  And with a frank, informal Q and A with Hydro One, and we have agreed to proceed on the basis that Mr. Boldt will provide the answers to the questions, and give the overview and discussion of the general structure of the agreement between Hydro One and Bell. 


We believe that will answer most of the remaining questions that we had that, implicitly or explicitly -- if anything gets missed in Mr. Boldt's rendition, I will ask to -- perhaps ask a few follow up questions and Ms. Varjacic can let him answer or not answer, as the case may be.  If it gets to a small argument over the relevance of a follow up, that's fine.


But we think -- crossed fingers -- that virtually everything that we would like to see on the record will come out of a combination of that answers and a few non--cross-examination follow up questions. 


MR. QUESNELLE:  Understood, okay.  Ms. Varjacic, that is your understanding? 


MS. VARJACIC:  It is, yes, thank you. 


MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.  So at this stage then I take it we will affirm Mr. Boldt?  Is that the understanding then?  Okay. 

HYDRO ONE - PANEL 1
John Boldt, Affirmed 


MR. QUESNELLE:  I believe your microphone is on? 


MR. BOLDT:  Yes. 


MR. QUESNELLE:  Great.  Thank you. 

Examination-In-Chief by Ms. Varjacic:

MS. VARJACIC:  Mr. Chair, if I might --


MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes, please.


MS. VARJACIC:  Just a few questions and a few questions about his credentials, and then I will turn it over to Mr. Pinos, if that is agreeable.


MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, yes.


MS. VARJACIC:  Mr. Boldt, I understand that you are the manager of program integration at Hydro One Networks Inc. 


MR. BOLDT:  I am.


MS. VARJACIC:  And have been since 2013.


MR. BOLDT:  I am.


MS. VARJACIC:  You have been employed with the company or its predecessor since 1988.


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.


MS. VARJACIC:  You have an electrical engineering degree from Ryerson.


MR. BOLDT:  No.  That's not correct. 


MS. VARJACIC:  Okay. 


MR. BOLDT:  I was one year in Ryerson and three years at --


MS. VARJACIC:  Saint Lawrence College.


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.


MS. VARJACIC:  Together, you have one degree? 


MR. BOLDT:  No.  I left before I got my degree.


MS. VARJACIC:  Tell us your education. 


MR. BOLDT:  It's a long story.


[Laughter]


MR. BOLDT:  Basically, they offered me a job in my third year, three months from graduation.  So I took the job.


MS. VARJACIC:  You are familiar with this issue of the joint-use attachment rate? 


MR. BOLDT:  I am.


MS. VARJACIC:  Okay.  Can you, please, give a general over view -- without getting into the nitty-gritty details -- of the reciprocal agreement that Hydro One has with Bell? 


MR. BOLDT:  Certainly.  Historically, we were in a pole sharing agreement where Hydro One will own 60 percent of the poles that are joint-use poles, meaning that Bell is attached to.  And Bell would own 40 percent of the poles that we are attached to. 


That number historically has been calculated, to the best of my knowledge, based on two entities:   a power company on a 40-foot pole and a telecom company, or in this case Bell Canada, on that same 40-foot pole, being the power company is using ten feet of dedicated space at the top and Bell is using two feet of space in the telecom space.


And every other common area on that pole is then shared equally.  And if you do the math on that, you will find that 60 percent of that space would be allocated to Hydro One or to the power company, and 40 percent is allocated to Bell. 


With that historical separation, it wasn't me that decided it, but I do know I believe how they calculated it. They took the province as a whole and every location where Hydro One -- Ontario Hydro at the time, but Hydro One now, where there's a physical geographical area that we serve, Bell and Hydro One, we're using that 60-40 split said:   How do we divide the province so that wherever it is in a Hydro One prime exchange, they would place and own the poles and wherever it is a Bell prime exchange, Bell would own and place the poles.


What they did was they took small geographical areas, based on exchanges -- which is the first three numbers historically after the area code on a phone -- and what they did was, they're small geographical areas and they just divided them.  60 percent of those are Hydro One's exchanges and 40 percent are Bell exchanges.


So in the field, when there is pole ownership and they're joint-use poles, if you're in a Hydro One prime, Hydro One would own those poles and Bell would be the attacher. 


In the Bell prime exchanges, Bell would own the pole and Hydro One would be the attacher.


And in our contract of convenience with that sharing of 60-40, we don't charge each other the attachment rate, or an attachment rate.


If joint-use -- if there is going to be non-joint-use poles, so Bell can have a pole line in a Hydro One prime exchange and/or Hydro One could own a pole line in a Bell prime exchange, and if one company approaches the other company to establish the joint-use, what happens is you would say:  Whose prime exchange is it?  Which geographical area?  So here's the geographical area, so that someone owns that prime.


If the poles need to be changed, in an example where if we're in a Bell prime exchange and Bell comes to Hydro and says we want to attach on to your structures, what Hydro does is, we would do make-ready, if the pole is required to be changed.  Bell is billed as per our agreement to change those poles and -- sorry, I am confused.  If this was a Bell prime?  Sorry. 


In a Bell prime exchange, if Bell came to us and the poles needed to be changed, Bell would place those poles.  They would supply the pole and then we would attach to it.


We will do -- one of the things before, if it's on trouble in the middle of the night and we're in a Bell prime exchange and it is a Bell pole, Hydro One will change that pole, if Bell is not available to bring that pole out in the middle of the night and then we invoice them for that pole, basically acting as a contractor for them.


I think we -- basically with the 60-40 split, I said earlier in a location where Hydro One may own poles in a Bell prime -- meaning a stand-alone pole line -- if there's capacity on that pole and Bell wishes to attach to it, they actually will buy that pole and become the owner when they do attach to it.


So basically, what happens is in those geographical boundaries, we know where we are, using GIS today, we have information on tablets and it used to be maps back in the day when I was in the field, and you go back to that 60-40 or who owns the exchange and whenever there is a joint-use attachment within that, the proper pole owner will own it. 


MS. VARJACIC:  Thank you.  There are additional questions which we have agreed to answer that will fill out some more of the information relating to the Bell agreement, which Mr. Pinos will ask. 


The one other question I wanted to put to Mr. Boldt, as Board Staff thought it would be helpful, is just if you can easily, please, explain how the 1.3 attachers per pole calculation was arrived at, and what is included in that figure, please. 


MR. BOLDT:  Okay.  So last summer, we used GIS to track our poles and we have all of our poles in the system being Hydro One-owned, and that there is a third party attachment or we call it a joint-use pole. 


What we refer to as a joint-use pole is a pole that someone other than Hydro One is attached to.  It can be another licenced distribution company.  It can be municipal street lights, traffic lights.  It can be telecom carriers with wireline connections.  We have generators that are attached, both power and telecom for generators.  And we have Bell Canada, of course.  


So when we did our query and we said, in GIS:   How many poles do we have someone attached to, being other than just a stand-alone Hydro One pole, at that time the query was 576,068 poles.


The next thing that we did was said -- and some of the wording around attachers and attachments -- and I explained it earlier -- is that if a carrier elects -- whether it is Bell or a telecom, other telecom company -- you don't bill per attachment.  It isn't the bolt through the pole or a fibre wire on a piece of strand.

What you do is, we issue a permit for them being attached to the pole.  So they could have -- they, being, let's say, use Bell, for instance -- Bell may have a strand at the bottom location in the telecom space and they may have a strand in the middle location of the telecom space.  But they are permitted to be attached to that pole.  They get a permit to be on that pole.

If it is any other carriers, what would happen is, it's the same.  If Rogers overlashed on a Bell wire -- which happens, and I will use Rogers as an example -- they then get a permit to be on that pole, and/or, if they have one or two strands and fibre on the pole, they still only get one permit.

So when we talk about "attachments" -- and that's where it gets a little bit -- maybe people don't quite understand it, but I am trying to do my best to explain it -- is we said:  How many attachments or permitted attachments do we have in the province on a pole?

So basically what happened is, because you don't give double permits to be on a structure, we know that there were 767,761 people -- or poles that contain attachments of an attacher.

And so what we did was, we took the 767,761, and we divided it by the number of poles that we knew that these -- that had joint use on them, to come up with the 1.3 attachers per pole.

MS. VARJACIC:  So Mr. Boldt, I believe you misspoke, because you said the 767 was the number of poles.  That is not.  That is the number of permitted --


MR. BOLDT:  Sorry, permitted.  Yes, so -- permitted.  Sorry.

MS. VARJACIC:  -- attachments.  Thank you.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Understood.  You used Bell as an example.  So over and above the 60-40 arrangements and ownership there is also the permitting goes on as well?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. QUESNELLE:  So they're in that number?  Okay.

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.

MS. VARJACIC:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  With that, I will turn it over to Mr. Pinos to put to Mr. Boldt the questions that Hydro One had agreed to answer.


Cross-Examination by Mr. Pinos:

MR. PINOS:  Yeah, and just, if I could just perhaps maybe go back to the first two questions just to make sure we're all on the same page here.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Certainly.

MR. PINOS:  Because I've heard it a couple of times this morning, and I know the members of the Panel heard it for the first time today.

I understand when you referred to the 60-40 that was the goal of the arrangement?

MR. BOLDT:  Hmm-hmm.

MR. PINOS:  Yes?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  All right.  But the way the arrangement has been implemented is through the division of the provinces into these little areas which are designated Bell or Hydro One?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  And I understood that, whether you call it Bell prime exchange or Bell-owned area, you know, the intent is that for an area allocated to Bell all the joint-use poles in that area will be owned by Bell?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  And with respect to an area allocated to now Hydro One, all the joint-use poles will be owned by Hydro One?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  And subject to emergencies like you referred to in the middle of the night, in the Bell-owned areas Bell is responsible for maintaining and replacing all the Bell joint-use poles?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  In the Hydro One areas Hydro One likewise is responsible for maintaining and, when necessary, replacing all the Hydro One joint-use poles?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  And I know you mentioned that within each of those separate areas Bell can own its own poles -- in a Hydro One area Bell can have poles that only it is using and therefore it owns?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.  It would be a stand-alone Bell pole.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  I understand that, likewise, there are Hydro One stand-alone single-use poles in the Bell areas?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And I understood that you said that when -- in order to maintain this arrangement of who owns what joint-use poles where, that if you had a pole in a Bell area and Bell came along and says, We now want to attach to it --


MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  -- they would attach to it, but then they would also have the pole transferred to them?

MR. BOLDT:  They purchase the pole, yes.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  And is there an actual purchase price per pole?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  We sell it for the residual value of the pole.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And flipping it over, the same thing happens in your area.  If you want to attach on a Bell single-use pole, you then take it over and it gets transferred to you for the same consideration?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.  If it is -- both have to be sufficient in capacity to handle the additional load.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  And --


MR. QUESNELLE:  Mr. Pinos, just before you -- and I am not sure if you're leaving that or not, but just, I want to go right back to the notion of the 60-40 and make sure I have that correct.

Is the -- you mentioned -- you talked about the cost allocation coming out.  Is it because -- or is it seen that the 60-40 creates an even-split, based on the allocated needs of 60 percent of -- because the hydro requirements are 60 percent of an atypical pole because it needs the top space?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, thank you.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And I was going to continue along this line because I think there is a couple of other clarifying points that would be helpful.

So although 60-40 was the goal, in fact, sitting here today, of the poles jointly used by Bell and Hydro One, Hydro One owns a number that is different from 60 percent of that total?

MR. BOLDT:  Yeah.  It is an ongoing back-and-forth type idea, but, yes, it is a little north of 60.

MR. PINOS:  Yeah, so -- and I think you have a number?  What is the current number for the percentage of joint-use Bell-Hydro One poles that are actually owned by Hydro One?  Because of the way these little areas work out.

MR. BOLDT:  It is 62.39 percent for Hydro and 37.61 percent for Bell.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  And I know in the buildup of the number to 767-, there is a number of 330-something-thousand poles that are -- that Bell is attaching to?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.  331,000.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  And that represents the 62 percent?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  So you can do the math and quickly -- and understand how many Bell poles Hydro One is on?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  And that number is about...

MR. BOLDT:  Approximately 199,000.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  So there is 330-something thousand Hydro One poles that Bell is on, about 199,000 Bell poles that Hydro One is on?

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  And those percentages fluctuate up and down depending upon who is doing new attachments in what area and who is building new poles?

MR. BOLDT:  Right.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  You indicated that you don't charge each other a pole attachment rate.  And I take it there is no other consideration going back and forth between Hydro One and Bell, apart from the free attachment to each others' poles for that right?

MR. BOLDT:  Well, we're going to answer a question in, I believe it is 2.11, so maybe I should answer that when we get there.  Would that work?

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  Oh, that is for the -- okay.  That relates to vegetation management costs?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  And the other thing --


MR. PINOS:  There is no other kind of fee or rental payable?

MR. BOLDT:  No rental, no.

MR. PINOS:  Okay, fair enough.

With respect to -- now, just a question or two on the -- is the panel comfortable with the rendition of the Bell-Hydro...

MR. QUESNELLE:  Any questions?

DR. ELSAYED:  No, no.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.

MR. PINOS:  I think the transcript will be clear as to how that works, so for the record, for the purposes --


MR. QUESNELLE:  A whiteboard and a few sticky notes will be fine.  

[Laughter]

MR. PINOS:  A few highlights and sticky notes?

Just a question or two on the 1. -- the calculation of the 1.3 attachers.

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  And your records of which poles have attachments is the system I think you referred to as GIS?

MR. BOLDT:  GIS will identify where there is joint use.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  Oh, does it --


MR. BOLDT:  And we have a permit database.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And that -- you can go to there and find out who is permitted on what individual poles?

MR. BOLDT:  Right.  And that is what we bill on for parties that do pay.

MR. PINOS:  Okay, right.  And are you able to determine, you know, what poles have single or multiple third-party attachers?

MR. BOLDT:  No.  We answered that.  We don't have that information, like a stand-alone Bell pole with Hydro One, no. 

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  Is that just because your permit database won't let you query that number? 

MR. BOLDT:  What we do is we permit a carrier onto that pole, but what we don't do is take a look at how many carriers are on that particular pole.  There could be multiple carriers on a pole, but we don't track the pole.  We just track it by permit. 

MR. PINOS:  Okay. 

DR. ELSAYED:  Sorry, does that mean that the charge that you have is irrespective of the number of attachments by a party? 

MR. BOLDT:  No.  If they have one attachment or if they have five attachments, they only pay once. 

DR. ELSAYED:  That's what I meant. 

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

DR. ELSAYED:  It doesn't depend on --


MR. BOLDT:  Not the attachment.  Just that they're attached to the pole in one form or another. 

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  Fair enough. 

MR. QUESNELLE:  Has your microphone gone off, Mr. Pinos? 

MR. PINOS:  Oh, sorry. 

If we could go to the -- do you have the list of undertakings? 

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  If we go to 2.1(a), I think we have covered that off.  But I take it that it’s fair to say that a pole that contains joint use means a pole that contains any third party attachment? 

MR. BOLDT:  That's correct.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  Move on from there.  And just a question that I think will cover off five or six of the outstanding ones we discussed.

Under your joint-use arrangements with Bell, I understood from your description that Bell has the right to come onto any Hydro One pole, and Hydro One has the right to come onto any Bell pole? 

MR. BOLDT:  That's correct. 

MR. PINOS:  Okay. 

Now, let's go to the next one you have agreed to answer, which is 2.3(g).



MR. BOLDT:  Okay.  So in the question from VECC, Mr. Harper, his concern was that we were grossing up rates to the other carriers or who are paying the full rate; he’s asking are we grossing up rates to the other carriers who are paying a full rate.

The answer to this question is, no, there is no double recovery or shifting of costs due to Bell pole sharing agreement -- due to our pole sharing agreement, sorry. 

If HONI charged Bell a regulated rate, it could theoretically reduce our revenue requirement, but, in turn, what Bell does is that they charge us a rate greater than the regulated rate, because that rate is unregulated and it is a negotiated rate. 

Theoretically, they could increase that rate, which then in fact would increase our revenue requirement; it would go up. 

In our contract, of convenience we agreed to not charge each other.  We save in administration costs and billing back and forth, and the offset of them being able to bill us more, not this regulated rate, actually makes our revenue requirement stay whole, where the fear is that it could increase. 

MR. PINOS:  Have you ever discussed with Bell the possibility of moving to a reciprocal charging mechanism? 

MR. BOLDT:  It was charged before my time and they got rid of it, because I think it was an administrative burden, and I am not bringing it up with Bell.  My fear is -- Mr. Harper's not in the room today, but it could be detrimental to us if we get into this billing back and forth. 

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  If we could go to 2.4(b)? 

MR. BOLDT:  Okay.  So the relationship that we have with Landsdowne Rural Telephone Company, NorthernTel and Thunder Bay Telephone, it is a reciprocal agreement, meaning that they own poles that we're attached to and we would own poles that they're attached to. 

And when they're attached there is no dedicated split as to where they put them in and where we do.  But what we do is we invoice each other, meaning Hydro One would invoice Landsdowne, NorthernTel and Thunder Bay Tel.  There would be a regulated rate, and they invoice us a negotiated rate. 

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And what is the -- is the negotiated rate similar to the regulated rate? 

MR. BOLDT:  It is north of the regulated rate, where they negotiated to be north of it.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.

MR. BOLDT:  The other thing I would adhere is that these attachments for these companies are within the calculation for the 1.3 attachers.

And again, I’ve noted that there is -- there's basically -- what these companies charge us goes against our revenue requirement and -- sorry, increases our revenue requirement, and what we charge them reduces our revenue requirement for our ratepayers. 

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  If we could now pass to 2.5, which is one of the VECC questions. 

I think you have touched on this, but maybe you could give us a bit of an explanation as to how the numbers of poles in your inventory have been calculated and how they're calculated and determined. 

MR. BOLDT:  So we use a GIS database to know the number of poles that we own.

MR. PINOS:  GIS is? 

DR. ELSAYED:  I think it is a geographic information system.

MR. BOLDT:  Yes, thank you for that.  So when we have done it, the OEB has mandated in our urban centres we have to go there every three years to do a pole inspection, which we do. 

At the time, originally when our data gatherers went there, they were using tablets to identify where the pole is, who the pole owner is, and also the condition of the pole -- which is separate to this.

In our rural situations, in our rural areas, they're there every six years.  So they're continually gathering data. 

During the normal course of work, in a sense where if it's a stand-alone Hydro One line and Bell comes to attach, but it is in a Bell prime, we -- through the OEB -- apply to sell the poles, which gets approval.  Then what happens is those poles in our GIS system, they actually would then be shown as a Bell pole. 

As new joint-use is established in any given area, if they're new poles or an expansion of poles, what happens is when our technicians go and design those poles real time today, they're actually entering those devices with their tablet in the field and that uploads regularly into our GIS system as well. 

And they don't just show Hydro-owned poles.  They will show Bell-owned poles or poles owned by others, possibly customers and anyone that owns a pole.

MR. PINOS:  Is there any form of audit?  This is the last part of the question.

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  So audits, in the regular three- and six-year cycle, we pick up items there.

But we also perform pole audits with our partners. Every year there is a program within Hydro that we take areas and we go out and we do audits and change ownership.

Sometimes there is unauthorized attachment.  Sometimes there is missing attachments, and we clean both up both the pole ownership but also the attachment information. 

MR. PINOS:  Okay, thank you for that.  If we could go forward to 2.11.  This is a question referring to the amounts that are paid to Hydro One by third parties for tree trimming or vegetation management. 

MR. BOLDT:  So over the last -- since for six years from 2010, it is in either on three million or just a little bit above $3 million per year. 

MR. PINOS:  Right.  Is that with respect to joint-use poles that you are maintaining, or is there a particular source for that amount? 

MR. BOLDT:  It's a negotiated amount when we're doing forestry on other people's poles. 

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  And would you say other people's poles, that would include Bell poles? 

MR. BOLDT:  Yes. 

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  So do you do -- this is what you referred to before where you act as a contractor to Bell.  Is that the situation? 

MR. BOLDT:  It is a negotiated amount.  

MR. PINOS:  Right.

MR. BOLDT:  Within our agreement.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.

DR. ELSAYED:  For clarification, $3 million is for joint-use poles only?  Or all poles?

MR. BOLDT:  It is for poles that carriers are attached to, and we do forestry on those poles.

DR. ELSAYED:  Okay.  Including Bell?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  Just one follow-up to an earlier question.

You mentioned earlier about how you don't want to go there, in terms of starting to do reciprocal charging with Bell, because I take it your fear is that they will charge you so much more that the balance will shift against you; is that correct?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  Financial balance will shift against you?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  Have you done any analysis to determine how much more Bell would have to charge you for its poles to shift that balance?

MR. BOLDT:  I believe that number is confidential, what they charge us, in their agreement.  The analysis that we've done is -- I have done --


MR. PINOS:  Yes.

MR. BOLDT:  -- I have done some estimates as to what the costs would be.

MR. PINOS:  If you move to that?

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  But when you refer to the number being confidential, is that a historical number?  Or is that the Bell MEU number?

MR. BOLDT:  That is the Bell MEU number.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  So you would take that as indicative of what Bell would charge you if you were charging each other for all your poles?

MR. BOLDT:  At present, yes, at 22.35, yes.

MR. PINOS:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Boldt, those are all my questions.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.  Any questions?
Questions by the Board:

DR. ELSAYED:  Yeah.  I had a question about Staff interrogatory 2.1, where Hydro One provided a number of tables.

MR. BOLDT:  I'm sorry, which number, please?

DR. ELSAYED:  2.1, Staff.

MR. BOLDT:  Okay, yes.  So Table 1 or Table 2?

DR. ELSAYED:  No.  My question is about Table 2 --


MR. BOLDT:  Okay.

DR. ELSAYED:  Or if the information that I am seeking is in Table 1, please let me know.

But I am looking at a scenario where you have what you call the corrected 2015 information, a 5 percent reduction, and no forestry included.  I don't seem to be able to find that scenario in either table.

And I will tell you where that is coming from, because what I've just mentioned is the scenario that was used in the Hydro Ottawa decision.

MR. BOLDT:  I think it is Table 1, column 6, either --


DR. ELSAYED:  That's what I thought, but I don't believe it is the corrected 2015.  It is the uncorrected 2015.

MR. BOLDT:  It is corrected to 5 percent reduction?

DR. ELSAYED:  No, sorry.  I don't remember what correction you made, but you made a distinction between Table 1 and 2.

MR. BOLDT:  Correct.

DR. ELSAYED:  Is that the -- as you can see in the headings, for example, column 6 in Table 2, it says "Hydro One corrected input, 2015".

MR. BOLDT:  Right.  So what that means is it is our 2015 costs.

DR. ELSAYED:  Correct -- what does "corrected" referred to?

MR. BOLDT:  I believe it is probably our year end 2015 costs.

DR. ELSAYED:  As opposed to, if you look at Table 1, column 6, it just says "Hydro One 2015".  It doesn't include the word "corrected".  So I am assuming there is a difference between those two.  There is a corrected set of numbers and there is an uncorrected set of numbers.  That was my understanding.


If you want to take that and think about it or -- my question is, if that scenario that I described is included, please let me know where that is.  If it is not, I would like to have that scenario provided.

MR. BOLDT:  Yes.  Maybe we could take an undertaking, but --


DR. ELSAYED:  Sure.

MR. BOLDT:  -- I believe it is just wording on the title, because if you take a look at the administration and loss of productivity from one to the next, they are the same costs.

The net embedded cost, where we're calculating it, we're using different reductions, like 5 percent versus 15 percent, but I could get back to you on that one to verify.

DR. ELSAYED:  Yes.  Because my understanding in reviewing Tables 1 and 2 is that basically the difference between the two is that one table -- Table 2 -- has a corrected set of data and Table 1 does not.  So if you just want to confirm that, that would be very helpful.

MR. BOLDT:  Okay, yes, we can do that.

DR. ELSAYED:  Okay.  And the other one is just a comment.  I think, Mr. Pinos, in your introductory remarks -- correct me if I'm wrong -- you mentioned that in the review and vary motion by the Carriers, the initial one, that your words were that the primary and sole reason for that was the vegetation management.

And I just wanted to comment on that, because my belief is that it was the lack of notice.  The vegetation management issue came later in the proceeding.

MR. PINOS:  Oh, sorry.  I may -- if I misspoke because I was trying to do it quickly --


DR. ELSAYED:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  Yeah, the basis for the review and vary motion was the lack of notice of the hearing.

DR. ELSAYED:  That's what I wanted to clarify.

MR. PINOS:  Right.  But, you know, in our -- you know, our interrogatories were directed primarily to the issue of the inclusion of vegetation costs.

So, yes, the grounds for the review and vary motion initially were lack of notice.

DR. ELSAYED:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  When we got the leave, our dispute with the rates that Hydro One had approved -- got approved last year were based primarily on vegetation costs.  So that was the --


DR. ELSAYED:  I just wanted to clarify that as well, because I am not sure if that was Hydro One's understanding, but at some point I know that the two parties came back and said, well, we have narrowed down everything to the vegetation management issue.  But the other parties, intervenors did not necessarily agree that that was the only issue that was in dispute.  I just want to make that clear.

MR. PINOS:  I get that, yes.  Oh, for sure.  And we will be addressing argument to that on the merits of the whole application.

DR. ELSAYED:  Okay, yes, thank you.
Procedural Matters:

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  So where does that leave us, Mr. Pinos?

MR. PINOS:  Well, I think we're -- as indicated in your procedural ruling, we've finished the evidence.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, good.

MR. PINOS:  And --


MR. QUESNELLE:  There aren't any other outstanding items that -- the questions that were --


MR. PINOS:  We attempted to cover every deficiency we could identify.  You know, we have had our opportunity here today.  So I guess the next thing would be to revisit the timetable for argument.  You have ruled that it is going to be an argument in writing.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  So it would be a question of understanding the timelines the Board is looking for, and what's -- to the extent that we're allowed to have input, that given that the summer is approaching --


MR. QUESNELLE:  Well, yes, no, understood.

MR. PINOS:  Counsel too.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.

MS. VARJACIC:  Mr. Chair, if I might.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes, please.

MS. VARJACIC:  Perhaps we could get an undertaking number for the question that Mr. Elsayed asked.

MR. RICHLER:  Yes.  That will be Undertaking J1.  
UNDERTAKING NO. J1:  TO CONFIRM THAT THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN TABLES 1 AND 2 IS THAT TABLE 2 HAS A CORRECTED SET OF DATA AND TABLE 1 DOES NOT.

MS. VARJACIC:  Thank you.  And just to be complete -- and I am not sure if it was intentional or inadvertent -- I believe Mr. Pinos missed one of the questions that Hydro One had agreed to answer.

In the notice of motion, under the general interrogatories, at 2.5(a) -- no, I'm sorry, 2.2(a)(ii), essentially there was a chart provided with a breakdown about the types of poles.  And in the notice of motion there was a question about differences in numbers.

In the response Hydro One indicated that the total number of joint-use poles was 997,000, where previously that number was 959,000.  And there was a request to explain the discrepancy.

So perhaps Mr. Boldt could just do that very quickly.

MR. BOLDT:  Sure.  In August -- actually, August 24th of 2015, we ran the GIS query, which came up with the total of 959,276, and in April of 2016 the table that we submitted months later is just an updated.  It is a shot on the day that you do it.  You can't go back, and the numbers are evolving all the time. 

MR. QUESNELLE:  So it is really a temporal difference then? 

MS. VARJACIC:  Thank you.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Mr. Pinos, okay? 

MR. PINOS:  Yes. 

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  As far as the schedule --


MR. RICHLER:  Pardon me, Mr. Chair, if I might just add one thing? 

Just for the record, I wanted to state that -- wanted to state OEB Staff's position, and to advise the Panel that coming in to today, Staff had some concerns about some of Hydro One's interrogatory responses.

But having now heard from Mr. Boldt, those concerns have mainly been alleviated.  So we would agree with Mr. Pinos.  From our perspective, no further discovery is needed and we can move on to the written argument stage.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you very much, Mr. Richler. 

MR. RICHLER:   As far as argument-in-chief goes, now -- and again for clarity of this, I will put on the record one more time -- this was the Carriers' motion, but in addressing the motion we agreed to hear part of the rates case again.  So in the order of the applicant, the applicant would be providing the argument-in-chief on this element.  I am asking for a date that you would be able to provide that. 

MS. VARJACIC:  Would next Friday, Mr. Chair, the 27th of May, be satisfactory? 

MR. QUESNELLE:  It would.  Okay. 

Mr. Pinos?  Two weeks?  One week? 

MR. PINOS:  I would appreciate two weeks, given the number of issues.  That is, I think, what was baked into the earlier schedule that is in Procedural Order No. 7.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  That's right.  We did -- we have been down this road before.

MR. PINOS:  Yes.

MR. QUESNELLE:  So whatever.  Two weeks was what we suggested then, and we will go with that.

MR. PINOS:  That's right.  Assuming there are no long weekends coming in that time frame, so two weeks.

MR. QUESNELLE:  So two weeks.  Then one week after that?  Would that be fine? 

MS. VARJACIC:  Yes, thank you.

MR. QUESNELLE:  I haven't got the dates on that, but we will take a look at the -- two weeks from Friday, and one week from that. 

MS. VARJACIC:  That would be June 10th for the Carriers, and June 17th is Hydro One's reply.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Very good.  So Carriers and Board Staff.

MR. RICHLER:  And just to clarify for the June 10th date, that would be all of the other parties.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes.

MR. RICHLER:  So the Carriers, Staff and intervenors?

MR. QUESNELLE:  That's correct, Mr. Richler.

MR. RICHLER:  And then the reply on the 17th by Hydro One.  And I can confirm, looking at Procedural Order No. 7 where the initial written argument schedule was set out, this time frame is consistent with that -- with what you had decided in that order.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Mr. Pinos?

MR. PINOS:  Just one supplementary point. 

Because we're in a group with the intervenors and we're very much not ad idem with the intervenors on most of the issues here, if there's something in the intervenors submissions -- because we're submitting at the same time.  This is how this issue arose in the first place.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes.

MR. PINOS:  I would seek leave to file ultra brief responses to any matters raised by intervenors that haven't already been raised by Hydro One in their submissions, at the same time that Hydro One replies? 

MR. QUESNELLE:  We, not at the same time.  Why don't we have it that you would reply and ultimately Hydro One would have the final, having seen your -- I would suggest that they would still have the final argument having seen your response to the other.

MR. PINOS:  So maybe we can bake it in so that if we get theirs on the 10th, we won't need -- I don't anticipate it would be much, but maybe we could push back Hydro One's final response to ten days out, and we will do it five days later or four days later, if we need to have a brief reply? 

MS. VARJACIC:  No objection.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Let's put some dates around that.

MR. PINOS:  I think Mr. Richler can figure that out. 

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay. 

MR. RICHLER:  Just so I understand, is the proposal that the Carriers have a final right of reply after --


MR. PINOS:  No, no.  The idea would be after the Carriers -- after all of the non-Hydro One parties exchange their views, if there are any matters -- and we're thinking of the intervenors, but I don't know what the Board Staff is planning on saying -- but if there’s any matters in the submissions of a party who is taking a position adverse to the Carriers that we want to reply to, that we can do so briefly within four days.

And then Hydro One can have their final reply to the world, you know, a few days after that.  Is that fair? 

MR. RICHLER:  Well, I would just point out that we don't have the benefit of the input of the intervenors today.  They didn't show up for this motion, and I don't know what they will have to say to that.

But I do understand, just from hearing from at least one of them informally, that they would not -- they may have issues with any revisions to the schedule that was set forth in this Procedural Order No. 7.

So I am just a little bit reluctant to agree to this modified sequence without having their input.

So what you might want to do is reserve a right to, as you put it, seek leave of the Board if you feel some additional step was needed, and then we could deal with it at that time. 

MR. PINOS:  Why don't we try this?  Why don't I ask the intervenors -- I am prepared to give them the same right, too, in terms of -- because they could say the same thing.  I don't know what you're going to say, and I may want to say something about it. too.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Being consistent with where the Board has gone with this in a similar matter, and the idea being that we recognize this is an offset to revenues.  We recognize it is relatively neutral to the applicant, quite frankly.  But the notion is it is a revenue offset to other intervenors.  It is a charge to the Carriers.

We have -- in other scenarios, there have been discussions that have gone on with Carriers and the distributors separate from the intervenors, and then it is brought in and everyone looks at it from that context.

What I am getting at, I think, Mr. Richler, Mr. Pinos has raised something that the Board is quite prepared to allow and that would be to have the – prospectively, the ability to raise a matter that comes up in the intervenor's arguments that it sees is counter to his client. 

MR. RICHLER:  Well, that's fine from Staff's perspective.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay, thank you.  So why don't we bake that in just so we know what we're faced with.

If the other intervenors have an issue with that, they can certainly raise it with the Board. 

MR. RICHLER:  And perhaps we can send out a letter to all parties after today just confirming the dates. 

MR. QUESNELLE:  Perfect, thank you.

DR. ELSAYED:  Just to clarify, you're referring to PO No. 7?  Did we go as far as the reply submissions and everything in that PO? 

MR. RICHLER:  PO No. 7 said Hydro One submits its written argument-in-chief and then --


DR. ELSAYED:  And what was the date? 

MR. RICHLER:  Well, that was initially March 22nd, 2016.

DR. ELSAYED:  Okay.

MR. RICHLER:  Then all other parties submit their submissions on April 8th, so approximately two weeks after that.  And then Hydro One had a right of reply due April 15th, so one week after all of the other submissions. 

DR. ELSAYED:  Which is consistent basically with the dates that we have just discussed. 

MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes. 

MR. RICHLER:  Yes. 

DR. ELSAYED:  The only step that doesn't change really; the thing is we have inserted one step in the middle, that's all.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Well, and we have relaxed.  I think we will have Hydro One come in ten days out as opposed to one week.

DR. ELSAYED:  Yes, okay.

MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  All right.  Well thank you very much.  Thank you very much, Mr. Boldt. 

Thank you.  And with that, we are adjourned.  Thank you very much.
--- Whereupon the hearing adjourned at 12:56 p.m.
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